
April 19, 2023 Lathrop Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 
 

 

April 19, 2023 – Planning Commission Regular Meeting – 6:00pm  

 

 
City Council Chamber 

390 Towne Centre Drive 
Lathrop, California 
(209) 941-7200 

www.ci.lathrop.ca.us 
 

Planning Commissioners 
Gloryanna Rhodes, Chair 

Tosh Ishihara, Vice Chair 

Bennie Gatto 

George Jackson 

Ash Ralmilay 

 

City Staff 
Mark Meissner, Community Development Director &  

Planning Commission Secretary  

Rick Caguiat, Assistant Community Development Director 

James Michaels, Senior Planner 

Trent DaDalt, Assistant Planner 

David Niskanen, Consultant Planner 

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney 

Maria Hermosilla, Executive Assistant 

 

 

 

 

http://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/


April 19, 2023 Lathrop Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 
 

 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THIS MEETING & COVID-19 
 
This public meeting will be conducted in person; all members of the Planning Commission will 
attend in person. Members of the public are welcomed in person. Please adhere to COVID-19 
and social distancing guidelines.  This meeting will also be available for public participation by 
teleconference via ZoomGov at the following link: 
  

https://www.zoomgov.com/j/1606358357?pwd=eEhNemtSZThyaFlZY
Ulmc1RyR29hdz09 

 
 During the meeting, those joining by ZoomGov, will be allowed to speak prior 

to the close of public comment on an item. If you are using this method, please 
“raise the hand” feature to inform the meeting host you wish to speak on the 
matter. Please ensure your computer speaker and microphone are fully 
functional.   
 

 Meeting ID:  160 635 8357 / Passcode: Lathrop 
 

 For audio only, call-in number: +1 (669) 254 5252.  To request to speak (same 
as the "raise hand" feature) press *9 / when the host calls your name, press 
*6 to unmute. 

 
• If you are not able to attend the meeting in person or virtually - public 

comment/questions will be accepted by email to Mark Meissner, Community 
Development Director and Planning Commission Secretary at 
planning@ci.lathrop.ca.us.   
 

• Questions or comments must be submitted by 3:00 p.m., on the day of the meeting. 
 

• To address Planning Commission in person, please submit an orange card to the 
Planning Commission Secretary indicating name, address, and number of the item 
upon which a person wishes to speak.  
 

Planning Commission Meetings are live-streamed (with Closed Captioning) on Comcast Cable 
Channel 97 and on the City’s website at https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/citycouncil/page/live-
stream 
 
Addressing the Planning Commission 

Any person may speak once on any item under discussion by the Planning Commission after 
receiving recognition by the Chair. Orange speaker cards will be available prior to and during 
the meeting. To address the Planning Commission, a card must be submitted to the Planning 
Commission Secretary indicating name, address and number of the item upon which a person 
wishes to speak. When addressing the Planning Commission, please walk to the lectern 
located in front of the Planning Commission. State your name and address. In order to ensure 
all persons have the opportunity to speak, a time limit will be set by the Chair for each speaker 
(see instructions on speaker form). In the interest of time, each speaker may only speak once 
on each individual agenda item; please limit your comments to new material; do not repeat 
what a prior speaker has said.  

https://www.zoomgov.com/j/1606358357?pwd=eEhNemtSZThyaFlZYUlmc1RyR29hdz09
https://www.zoomgov.com/j/1606358357?pwd=eEhNemtSZThyaFlZYUlmc1RyR29hdz09
mailto:planning@ci.lathrop.ca.us
https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/citycouncil/page/live-stream
https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/citycouncil/page/live-stream


April 19, 2023 Lathrop Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 
 

 

Citizen’s Forum 

Any person desiring to speak on a matter, which is not scheduled on this agenda, may do so 
under the Public Comment section. Please submit your orange speaker card to the Planning 
Commission Secretary prior to the commencement of Public Comment, or submit your request 
to speak via the “raise hand” feature in ZoomGov. Only those who have submitted speaker 
cards, or have expressed an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of Public Comment will 
be called upon to speak. Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the 
Planning Commission from taking any immediate action on an item, which does not appear 
on the agenda, unless the item meets stringent statutory requirements. The Chair will limit 
the length of your presentation (see instructions on speaker form) and each speaker may only 
speak once on this agenda item.  
 
Information 
 
If you wish to appeal a decision of the Planning Commission, you must do so within ten (10) 
calendar days following the meeting. Please contact the Planning Division at (209) 941-7290 
for information regarding the appeal procedure. 
 
NOTE: If you challenge the nature of a proposed action in court, you may be limited to raising 
only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, 
or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission at, or prior to, the public 
hearing. 
 
This agenda was posted at least 72 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting at the 
following locations: City Hall, Community Center, Generations Center, Senior Center, and "J" 
Street and Somerston Fire Department Offices and the City website. To obtain a hard copy 
of this agenda packet, please visit the Community Development Department counter located 
at 390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA  95330, or you may also call (209) 941-7290 to 
have it sent via mail or e-mail.  The agenda packet is available on the "Agendas & Minutes" 
page of the City of Lathrop website, please follow the link: 
https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/meetings 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting please call (209) 941-7290. 
Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meeting (28CFR 
35.102.35.104 AD Title II). 

 
  

https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/meetings


April 19, 2023 Lathrop Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4 
 

 

CITY OF LATHROP 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

Agenda 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 19, 2023 AT 6:00 P.M. 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 
390 TOWNE CENTRE DRIVE, LATHROP, CA 95330 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 
4. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
Persons who wish to speak to the Commission regarding an item that is not 
on tonight’s agenda may do so at this time. Upon recognition by the 
Chairperson, please step forward to the podium; state your name, city of 
residence and subject matter. 

 
 
6. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS 

 
Items on the agenda requested to be added, deleted, or continued will be 
announced at this time. 

 
 
7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
 7.1 March 29, 2022 – Special Meeting 
 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 
None 
 
 
 
 



April 19, 2023 Lathrop Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5 
 

 

9. SCHEDULED ITEMS 
 
9.1 General Plan Consistency for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 & 2024-2025 
 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

 
Consider Adoption of a Resolution Finding Consistency with the General 
Plan for the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 & 2022-2023 Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP). 
   

 Location:  Citywide  
        
ENVIRONMENTAL STATUS:  Exempt according to the California 
Environmental Quality Act Article 5 §15061(b) (3). 

 
 

10. STAFF COMMENTS 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 



    Page 1 of 4  

CITY OF LATHROP 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING 
MARCH 29, 2023  

 
MINUTES 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER   
 

Meeting was called to order by Chair Rhodes for the March 29, 2023 Special Planning 
Commission meeting at 6:00 P.M.  
 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
 PRESENT:  Rhodes, Ishihara, Gatto, Ralmilay 
 ABSENT:    Jackson 
  

Staff Present:  Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney; Mark Meissner, Community 
Development Director; Rick Caguiat, Assistant Community Development Director; James 
Michaels, Senior Planner; Trent DaDalt, Assistant Planner; and Maria Hermosilla, 
Executive Assistant  
 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

4.         DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 

None               
 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None             
 
 

6. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS 
 
None  
 
 
 
 



    Page 2 of 4  

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
7.1 March 29, 2023 – Special Meeting 

 
(M) Jackson (S) Ishihara to approve the March 29, 2023 minutes   

 
 Ayes:      Rhodes, Ishihara, Ralmilay, Gatto  
 Noes:      None 
 Absent:    Jackson  
 Abstain:   None 
 Motion Carries: 4-0-1-0 
 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 

8.1 Municipal Code Text Amendment No. TA-23-32 
 
  Mr. Caguiat made the staff report presentation. 

 
 Commissioner Gatto asked why the City is setting hotel limitations when they 
generate revenues for the City.  Mr. Caguiat explained that Council would like to 
preserve commercial lots to ensure their availability for other future commercial 
ventures like retail.  Mr. Meissner added that the limitation is more like a safety net 
and the City has the option to reconsider if there will be attractive opportunities in 
the future.        

 
 Commissioner Ralmilay asked if the size of the hotels are limited as well.  Mr. 
Caguiat replied that the limitation is only applies to the number of hotels and not 
the size.       

 
 Chair Rhodes commented that the proposed limitation is consistent with the 
General Plan and the move will create a balance in the commercial districts on the 
west side of I-5.  She agrees with City Council that other commercial opportunities 
should be given consideration and lands should be preserved for other variety of 
establishments.  Mr. Caguiat added that the City has been getting increased interests 
on various commercial uses lately.    

 
OPENED PUBLIC HEARING  

 
Mr. Paul Camarena, Lathrop resident, asked for information on the grown potential 
of Lathrop.  Mr. Caguiat proceeded to go over the various existing commercial 
activities in the City.     
 
CLOSED PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 
 



    Page 3 of 4  

 
MOTION 
  
Moved by Commissioner Gatto, Second by Commissioner Ralmilay to adopt 
Planning Commission Resolution 23-4 recommending City Council amend Title 
17 of the Lathrop Municipal Code and approve amendments to the Mossdale 
Landing Urban Design Concept to limit hotel development in the Central Lathrop 
Specific Plan and Mossdale Village Development areas (TA-23-32). 
 
 Ayes:     Rhodes, Ishihara, Gatto, Ralmilay 
 Noes:     None 
 Absent:   Jackson 
 Abstain:  None 
 Motion Carries: 4-0-1-0 
 
  

9. SCHEDULED ITEMS 
 
Due to a possible conflict of interest for Items 9.1 and 9.2, Commissioner Rhodes recused 

 herself and left the chamber during Scheduled Item discussions. 
 

9.1 Neighborhood Development Plan No. NDP-23-24 
   
  Mr. DaDalt made the staff report presentation. 

 
 Ramon Batista of the River Islands Development came forward to explain that the 
builder has requested the ADUs since they are now a trend and can potentially 
attract more sales.   

 
 Commissioner Ralmilay asked about the size of the ADUs.  Mr. Batista replied that 
the sizes would range from 700 to 900 SF with separate entrances.        

 
  
MOTION 
  
Moved by Commissioner Gatto, Second by Commissioner Ralmilay to adopt 
Planning Commission Resolution 23-2 approving an amendment to the Old River 
District Architectural Design Guidelines & Development Standards (NDP-23-24). 
 
 Ayes:     Rhodes, Ishihara, Gatto, Ralmilay 
 Noes:     None 
 Absent:   Jackson 
 Abstain:  Rhodes 
 Motion Carries: 3-0-1-1 

 
 



    Page 4 of 4  

 
9.2 River Islands – Woodlands East Neighborhood Development Plan No. NDP-23-25 
 
  Mr. DaDalt made the staff report presentation. 

 
 Mr. Batista gave an update on future projects that would be brought before the 
Planning Commission and City Council.  He also took the opportunity to 
congratulate Mr. Meissner on his upcoming retirement and thanked him for his 
service through the years.       

 
MOTION 
  
Moved by Commissioner Ishihara, Second by Commissioner Ralmilay to adopt 
Planning Commission Resolution 23-3 approving the Woodlands East District 
Neighborhood Development Plan (NDP-23-25). 
 
 Ayes:     Rhodes, Ishihara, Gatto, Ralmilay 
 Noes:     None 
 Absent:   Jackson 
 Abstain:  Rhodes 
 Motion Carries: 3-0-1-1 
 

Commissioner Rhodes rejoined the meeting. 
 
 

10. STAFF COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Meissner announced his upcoming retirement in May and thanked the Planning 
Commissioners for their work and cooperation through the years.  The Planning 
Commissioners took turns in congratulating Mr. Meissner and wishing him luck on his 
retirement.  They thanked him for his many contributions to the City and the Planning 
Commission during his tenure as the Community Development Director.   
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
  

Commissioners credited staff and the leadership for working together and provide stability 
to make Lathrop one of the fastest growing city in the country.   
 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chair Rhodes adjourned the meeting at 7:25 PM.   



 ITEM 9.1 

Page 1 of 10 
 

      PLANNING COMMISSION 
         STAFF REPORT  
  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
DATE:    April 19, 2023 
 
LOCATION:   Citywide 
 
REQUEST:  Consider Adoption of Resolution Finding Consistency with the 

General Plan for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 & 2024-2025 Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP).  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
APPLICANT:    City of Lathrop 
 
CEQA STATUS:    Exempt according to California Environmental  

 Quality Act Article 5 §15061 (b) (3). 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
As part of the bi-annual budget process, the City prepares the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
that prioritizes and sets funding for public infrastructure improvement projects. California 
Government Code Section 65401 requires that the Planning Commission review all proposed 
Public Works projects recommended for planning, initiation or construction for conformity with 
the General Plan. Staff has reviewed the proposed projects for the 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 fiscal 
years and determined that the projects are consistent with the General Plan. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Finding of Consistency 
 
The principal tools used to guide planning and programming of public infrastructure improvements 
are the City’s General Plan and the Capital Improvement Program. As the CIP prioritizes and sets 
funding for improvement projects, the General Plan contains numerous goals and policies that 
provide direction in addressing the City’s short and long term infrastructure needs.  Attachment 
“2” of this staff report includes a summary table and project description sheet of each of the 
improvement projects proposed for the FY 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 CIP.  Noted below is a list 
of categories from Attachment “2” that include current improvement projects that have been 
initiated by City staff followed by applicable City General Plan goals policies and/or 
implementation actions that support the City’s needs for these improvement projects: 
 
General Government and Public Safety 
 
• GG 19‐07 Citywide Surveillance System  
• GG 20‐15 Energov Development Services Module 
• GG 21‐11 Police Department Transition  

City of 



 ITEM 9.1 

Page 2 of 10 
 

• GG 21‐13 Corp Yard Improvements  
• GG 22‐01 Capital Facility Fee Study Update  
• GG 22‐02 Citywide Cathodic Protection Maintenance  
• GG 22‐03 Citywide Fiber Optic Communication Improvements  
• GG 22‐35 Installation of Camera Surveillance System for Major City Parks 
• GG 23-06 Temporary Animal Shelter 
• GG 23-07 Public Transit Services 
• GG 23-11 Animal Shelter 
• GG 23-19 South Lathrop Surveillance System 
• GG 24-01 Landscape Upgrades to River Islands Parkway 
 
Applicable Goals/Policies/Implementation Actions:  
 

Policy PFS-1.12: Infrastructure Rehabilitation.  Prioritize the regular maintenance and 
rehabilitation of public facilities and critical infrastructure in Lathrop. 

 
Policy PFS-6.8: Public Facility Communication. Pursue a fiber optic system to connect all 
City facilities. Connect all traffic signals to City Hall to allow remote monitoring, traffic 
counts and adjustments and to facilitate coordinated operation to improve traffic flow. 

 
Implementation Action CIR-1m: Require new development to pay a fair share of the costs 
of street and other transportation improvements in conformance with the goals and policies 
established in this Circulation Element and the CFF program.  

 
Implementation Action CIR-1n: Aggressively pursue state and federal funding to augment 
the CFF program and implement the City’s Circulation Element. 

 
Parks and Recreation Improvements 
  
• PK 20‐02 Milestone Park Improvements 
• PK 22-05 New Lathrop Community Center  
• PK 22‐09 Thomsen Park Improvements  
• PK 22‐12 The Green Park Improvements  
• PK 24-34 Shilling Avenue Park Improvements 
• PK 24-02 Community Center and Generations Center Marquees 
• PK 24-03 7th Street Park Design 
• PK 24-04 Park Revitalization Project 
• PK 25-01 Valverde Park Revitalization Project 

 
Applicable Goals/Policies/Implementation Actions:  
 

Goal RR-1.6: Provide the community with high-quality parks and recreational amenities. 
 
Policy RR-1.6: Design and Maintenance. Promote implementation of established design, 
construction, and facility maintenance standards to ensure that existing and future parks, 



 ITEM 9.1 

Page 3 of 10 
 

recreational facilities, open space, and trails are of high quality in regard to safety, utility, 
environmental stewardship, and aesthetic quality. 

 
Street Improvements 
 
• PS 06‐06 Louise Avenue and I‐5 Improvements  
• PS 12‐04 Manthey Road Bridge Replacement  
• PS 14‐04 Harlan Road Precise Plan Line  
• PS 15‐02 Louise Avenue & Mckinley Avenue Signal Improvements  
• PS 17‐09 State Route 120 and Yosemite Ave/Guthmiller Road  
• PS 22‐15 Citywide Engineering and Traffic Study  
• PS 22‐17 Lathrop Active Transportation Plan  
• PS 22‐18 Class 2 ‐ Bikeway to ACE Station 
• PS 23-01 City-wide Traffic Systems and Safety Upgrades 
• PS 23-09 Sidewalk Infill at J Street and 5th Street Intersection 
• PS 23-18 McKinley Avenue Pavement Project 
• PS 24-05 FY 2023/24 Pavement Maintenance  
• PS 24-06 FY 2023/24 Pavement Maintenance and Repair Project/City Wide Slurry Seal 
• PS 24-07 FY 2023/24 Traffic Calming 
• PS 24-08 Slate Street Sidewalk Improvements 
• PS 24-09 Update Lathrop Bicycle Master Plan 
 
Applicable Goals/Policies/Implementation Actions:  
 

Implementation Action CIR-1c: Apply signals, roundabouts, traffic circles and other traffic 
management techniques appropriately at residential and collector street intersections with 
collector and arterial streets in order to allow bicyclists and pedestrians to travel more 
conveniently and more safely from one neighborhood to another. 
 
Implementation Action CIR-2b: Add planned bicycle and pedestrian facilities in 
conjunction with road rehabilitation, reconstruction, or re-striping projects whenever 
feasible. 
 
Implementation Action CIR-2c: Enhance sidewalks to create a high-quality pedestrian 
environment, including wider sidewalks and improved pedestrian crossings, landscaping, 
buffers between sidewalks and vehicle travel lanes, enhanced pedestrian lighting, 
wayfinding signage, shade trees, and canopies, increased availability of benches, and other 
features. 
 
Implementation Action CIR-1d: Use traffic calming tools to assist in implementing 
complete street principles; possible tools include roundabouts, raised intersections, curb 
extensions, reduced roadway width, and high visibility crosswalks. 

 



 ITEM 9.1 

Page 4 of 10 
 

Implementation Action CIR-2a: Create an active transportation plan supporting the 
development of bicycle and pedestrian networks across the City and funding applications 
for bicycle and pedestrian improvements. 
 
Implementation Action CIR-2l: Create bicycle and pedestrian connections to the ACE 
station, planned Valley Link stations, and other transit stops. 

 
Water Improvements 
 
• PW 20‐16 Groundwater Treatment Improvements  
• PW 22‐19 Integrated Water Resources Master Plan Updates  
• PW 22‐20 Northern McKinley Industrial Area Fire Flow Improvements  
• PW 22‐21 McKinley Avenue and East Louise Avenue Fire Flow Improvments  
• PW 22-36 Aquifer Storage and Recovery 
• PW 22-37 Well 10 Testing, Analysis and Modifications 
• PW 24-10 Booster Pump Stations Chlorine Residual Control Systems 
• PW 24-11 Murphy Pkwy Fire Flow Loop to Harlan Rd 
• PW 24-12 East Lathrop – Water Main & Lateral Upgrades 
 
Applicable Goals/Policies/Implementation Actions:  
 

Policy PFS-2.1: Water System and Supply.  Manage the water system to ensure that the 
water supply is adequate to meet the needs of existing and future development and is 
utilized in a sustainable manner. 

 
Policy PFS-2.2: Integrated Water Resources Master Plan.  Continue to update and 
implement the Integrated Water Resources Master Plan (IWRMP). 
 
Policy PFS-10.4: Promotion.  Promote the use of recycled water and treated wastewater to 
the extent allowable and feasible, including use for irrigation, agriculture, industrial, and 
groundwater recharge purposes, when such opportunities become available. 

 
Implementation Action PFS-2a: Update the IWRMP, regarding water supply and 
distribution, every five years, or as needed. The update shall reflect the most recent adopted 
groundwater studies that establish a safe yield for the groundwater basin and/or establish 
maximum extraction from the basin. The update shall be reviewed periodically for 
adequacy and consistency with the General Plan 
 
Implementation Action PFS-2b:  Continue to rely on existing groundwater and surface 
water resources, while maintaining and improving the infrastructure, in collaboration with 
the SSJID, other water districts, and other local jurisdictions where applicable, to provide 
access to the water supply. 
 
Implementation Action PFS-3a: Update the IWRMP regarding wastewater collection and 
treatment every five years, or as needed. The update shall be reviewed periodically for 
adequacy and consistency with the General Plan. 



 ITEM 9.1 

Page 5 of 10 
 

 
Policy PS-2.6: Water Supply.  Ensure that new development is served with adequate water 
volumes and water pressure to support fire protection, including minimum required fire 
flow standards for commercial, industrial and residential areas. 

 
Drainage Improvements 
 
• SD 22‐23 Citywide Storm Drain Pump Station Improvements 
• SD 24-13 Full Trash Capture Devices 

 
Applicable Goals/Policies/Implementation Actions:  
 

Policy PFS-4.1: Maintain Capacity.  Maintain and improve storm drainage infrastructure 
and flood control facilities in order to protect the community from flood hazards. 

 
Implementation Action PFS-4c: Identify which storm water and drainage facilities are in 
need of repair or reconstruction and address these needs through the City’s Capital 
Improvement Program. 

 
Wastewater Improvements 
 
• WW 20‐17 LCTF Surface Water Discharge 
• WW 22‐24 Integrated Wastewater Resources Master Plan Update  
• WW 22‐38 Consolidated Treatment Facility Phase 3 Expansion 
• WW 24‐14 Wastewater Lift Station Access Modifications 
• WW 24‐15 Ozone Upgrade for Wastewater Pump Stations 
 
Applicable Goals/Policies/Implementation Actions:  
 

Policy PFS-3.1: Wastewater Infrastructure.  Ensure adequate wastewater collection and 
treatment infrastructure to serve existing and future development. 

 
Policy PFS-3.2: Peak Flow. Maintain the ability to handle peak discharge flow as per the 
State Regional Water Quality Control Board requirements established in the current Waste 
Discharge Requirements (WDR’s) Order for the Lathrop Consolidated Wastewater 
Treatment Facility (LCTF). 

 
Implementation Action PFS-3a: Under the IWRMP regarding wastewater collection and 
treatment every five years, or as needed.  The update shall be reviewed periodically for 
adequacy and consistency with the General Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 ITEM 9.1 

Page 6 of 10 
 

Recycled Water Improvements 
 

• RW 23‐02 Recycled Water Operations and Permitting 
• RW 24‐16 Recycled Water System Decommissioning 
 
Applicable Goals/Policies/Implementation Actions:  
 

Goal PFS-10: Support the use of recycled water to meet water demands. 
 
Policy PFS-10.4: Promotion.  Promote the use of recycled water and treated wastewater to 
the extent allowable and feasible, including use for irrigation, agriculture, industrial, and 
groundwater recharge purposes, when such opportunities become available. 

 
Policy PFS-10.5: Infrastructure.  As feasible, require recycled water infrastructure 
including purple pipes to encourage the future use of reclaimed water for urban landscapes 
to be included in new development and infrastructure projects. 

 
Implementation Action PFS-10: Pursue expansions to the treatment and distribution 
capacity of recycled water supplies. 

 
 
Future Capital Improvement Projects 
 
• PS 06‐16 Lathrop Road and I‐5 Improvements  
• PW 08‐09 Well 21 Improvements 
• SD 08‐07 Shilling Storm Water Pump Station & Force Main 
 
Applicable Goals/Policies/Implementation Actions:  
 

Policy RR-1.6: Design and Maintenance. Promote implementation of established design, 
construction, and facility maintenance standards to ensure that existing and future parks, 
recreational facilities, open space, and trails are of high quality in regard to safety, utility, 
environmental stewardship, and aesthetic quality. 

 
Goal CIR-1: Develop and maintain a roadway system that accommodates all users. 
 
Policy CIR-1.1: Roadway Network.  Provide a roadway network that is consistent with the 
planned improvements shown on the Circulation Element Map (Figure CIR-1). 
 
Goal PFS-2: Provide existing and project development with reliable, adequate access to 
clean, safe, and potable water. 
 
Policy PFS-2.1: Water System and Supply. Manage the water system to ensure that the 
water supply is adequate to meet the needs of existing and future development and is 
utilized in a sustainable manner. 
 



 ITEM 9.1 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Policy PFS-2.7: Drinking Water. Ensure safe drinking water, consistent with federal and 
state standards, is available throughout the community. 
 
Implementation Action PFS-4a: Update the City’s master plans regarding stormwater 
runoff, flooding, and removal of surface water contaminants every five years, or as needed. 
The update shall be reviewed periodically for adequacy and consistency with the General 
Plan. 
 
Implementation Action PFS-4c: Identify which storm water and drainage facilities are in 
need of repair or reconstruction and address these needs through the City’s Capital 
Improvement Program. 

 
Regulatory Compliance Programs 
 
• GG 22‐31 ADA Transition Plan Update  
• PS 24‐17 Annual Striping Update  
• PW 24‐18 Lead and Copper Rule Revisions  
• PW 24‐19 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Compliance  
• PW 24‐20 Urban Water Management Plan  
• SD 24‐21 Phase II Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Program 
• WW 24-22 Sanitary Sewer Overflow Reduction  
 
Applicable Goals/Policies/Implementation Actions:  
 

Policy RR-8.8: Management Strategies. Manage water resources as part of a broader 
integrated approach that includes groundwater, surface water, conservation, water quality, 
reuse, environmental stewardship, and other water management strategies 
 
Implementation Action RR-8a: Regularly review and update the City’s water conservation 
measures to be consistent with current best management practices for water conservation, 
considering measures recommended by the State Department of Water Resources and the 
California Urban Water Conservation Council. 
 
Policy PFS-2.8: Water Conservation. Support water conservation measures that comply 
with state and federal legislation and that are consistent with measures adopted in the City’s 
Integrated Water Resources Master Plan and Urban Water Management Plan. 
 
Policy PFS-2.1: Water System and Supply. Manage the water system to ensure that the 
water supply is adequate to meet the needs of existing and future development and is 
utilized in a sustainable manner. 
 
Goal PFS-1: Provide effective, adequate, cost-efficient, and high-quality community 
services and facilities for residents, businesses, institutions, and visitors in Lathrop. 
 



 ITEM 9.1 

Page 8 of 10 
 

Policy PFS-1.1: Service Enhancements. Encourage the implementation of new techniques 
and technologies to provide the best available level of community services in a cost-
effective manner. 
 
Policy PFS-1.3: Public Facility Plans. Maintain and implement public facility master plans, 
in collaboration with appropriate outside service providers and other agencies, to ensure 
compliance with appropriate regional, state, and federal laws and to provide efficient public 
facilities and services to the city. 
 
Policy PFS-1.6: Capital Improvements. Maintain and fund the capital improvement 
program to ensure the adequate and efficient provision of public facility and municipal 
improvements. 
 
Policy PFS-4.3: Regional Partnerships. Continue to work cooperatively with the San 
Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency and other outside agencies to meet SB-5 requirements 
to provide a 200-year Urban Level of Protection and other needs and priorities relative to 
storm drainage issues. Also, continue to participate with the San Joaquin Valley 
Stormwater Quality Partnership to meet objectives related to compliance with the City’s 
Small MS4 Phase 2 permit. 
 
Policy PFS-4.4: National Programs. Cooperate in regional programs to implement the 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System program. 

 
Policy PFS-3.2: Peak Flow. Maintain the ability to handle peak discharge flow as per the 
State Regional Water Quality Control Board requirements established in the current Waste 
Discharge Requirements (WDR’s) Order for the Lathrop Consolidated Wastewater 
Treatment Facility (LCTF). 

 
Policy PFS-3.3: Statewide Requirements. Statewide Requirements. Maintain compliance 
with the current Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements concerning the 
operation and maintenance of sanitary sewer collection systems. 

 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff has reviewed the above noted projects and recommends the adoption of the attached 
resolution finding the CIP is consistent with the goals, policies, and implementation actions of the 
General Plan.  The projects are all included within other adopted plans that have been drafted as a 
result of General Plan policy.  Many CIP projects are still on-going and are carried over from 
previous years and were previously found to be consistent with the City General Plan, but continue 
to require fiscal year funding allocations and therefore continue to be presented. 
 
The determination of consistency is needed prior to the City Council’s adoption of the CIP as part 
of the budget process. The City Council will use the Planning Commission’s determination for this 
purpose. 
 
 



 ITEM 9.1 

Page 9 of 10 
 

CEQA REVIEW: 
 
The finding of consistency for the proposed CIP projects with the General Plan is not subject to 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Article 5 §15061 (b) (3) by the 
“General Rule” that CEQA applies only to projects that have a potential for causing a direct 
physical change in the environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the 
environment. The proposed action does not authorize any specific construction; it is only a finding 
of consistency to the General Plan. Each project within the CIP must undergo environmental 
review before the project is carried out.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission adopt Resolution No. 23-5, finding the Fiscal Year 
2023-2024 and 2023-2024 Capital Improvement Program to be consistent with the General Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Planning Commission Resolution No. 23-5            Page 1 of 3 
 

CITY OF LATHROP 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 23-5 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LATHROP 
MAKING A FINDING OF CONSISTENCY WITH THE GENERAL PLAN FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 AND 2024-2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

(CIP) 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed public meeting to 
consider the proposed Fiscal Year 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 Capital Improvement Program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop current adopted a Comprehensive General Plan on September 

19, 2022, which has been updated from time to time and includes specific policies and objectives for 
infrastructure, construction and maintenance of public facilities; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Plan goals, policies, and implementation actions that 

address the projects listed in the CIP General Government and Public Safety category; and  
  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Plan goals, policies, and implementation actions that 
address the projects listed in the CIP Parks and Recreation Improvements category; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Plan goals, policies, and implementation actions that 

address the projects listed in the CIP Street Improvements category; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Plan goals, policies, and implementation actions that 

address the projects listed in the CIP Water Improvements category; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Plan goals, policies, and implementation actions that 

address the projects listed in the CIP Drainage Improvements category; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Plan goals, policies, and implementation actions that 

address the projects listed in the CIP Wastewater Improvements category; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Plan goals, policies, and implementation actions that 
address the projects listed in the CIP Recycled Water Improvements category; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Plan goals, policies, and implementation actions that 

address the projects listed in the CIP Future Capital Improvement Projects category; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Plan goals, policies, and implementation actions that 

address the projects listed in the CIP Regulatory Compliance Programs category; and  
 
 
 

 



Planning Commission Resolution No. 23-5            Page 2 of 3 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Government Code Section 65401, the Planning 
Commission is required to review Capital Improvement Program to determine that it is consistent with 
the City’s adopted General Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the finding of consistency with the General Plan is exempt from the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Article 5 §15061 (b) (3) by the “General Rule” that 
CEQA applies only to projects that have a potential for causing a direct physical change in the 
environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment. The proposed 
action does not authorize any specific construction; it is only a finding of consistency to the General 
Plan. Each project within the CIP must undergo environmental review before the project is carried 
out; and 

 
WHEREAS, City staff has prepared the proposed FY 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 CIP and has 

provided the CIP for review by the Planning Commission. 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of 
Lathrop based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings, its findings above 
and pursuant to its independent review and consideration, does hereby find that the proposed FY 2023-
2024 and 2024-2025 Capital Improvement Program, as attached and incorporated as Attachment 2 of 
the Staff Report, is consistent with the adopted City of Lathrop General Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 












































































































































	PC Agenda 04-19-23 Regular Meeting
	PC Minutes 03-29-23 Special
	Item 9.1
	Attach 1 Reso No. 23-5
	Attach 2 -CIP Projects


